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NYS Community Development Financial Institution Assistance Fund 
 

Release Date: February 26, 2021 

 
The following is a list of responses to questions submitted by prospective respondents to the ESD Request for 
Applications for New York State’s Community Development Financial Institution (CDFI) Assistance Fund.  A copy 
of the RFA is available at:  https://esd.ny.gov/doing-business-ny/requests-proposals/community-development-
financial-institution-cdfi-assistance. 

 
NYS Community Development Financial Institution (CDFI) 

Assistance Fund RFA - Responses to Questions 
 

No. Question Answer 

1 

Would CDFIs that are not Credit Unions be able to 
partner with Credit Unions and Community Banks? 

Absolutely, non depository accepting CDFIs can 
with work CDFI Credit Unions and CDFI Banks, 
non-CDFI Credit Unions and Community Banks in 
their service area to help unbanked and 
underbanked NYS residents get access to 
affordable banking services 

2 

Would ESD permit a CDFI to use grant funds to 
support an existing technical assistance and 
capacity building program or does the service need 
to be entirely new? 

This new RFA focuses on building capacity within 
New York based CDFIs and supporting their 
commitment to racial equity and ability to serve 
the bank challenged and otherwise underserved 
populations. CDFIs should provide an RFA that 
documents entirely new services.  

3 

The CDFI must have a physical presence in New 
York State and 70% of business transactions are 

conducted within the state. 
Entity X has a headquarter in NYC, plus 7 branches. 
Though we are a national organization, New York 

comprises our largest footprint across the country. 
100% of our New York branches’ business 

transactions remain within the state. Are we 
eligible to apply for this opportunity? 

 

Yes, as long as your organization has a physical 
brick and mortar location in the state of New York 
and 70% of your total business services take place 

within the confines of New York State. 

https://esd.ny.gov/doing-business-ny/requests-proposals/community-development-financial-institution-cdfi-assistance
https://esd.ny.gov/doing-business-ny/requests-proposals/community-development-financial-institution-cdfi-assistance


 

 

No. Question Answer 

4 

Can you clarify that this is different from the 
request for applications that was issued by your 
office in December, with applications being due 
January 6th? 

This new RFA focuses on building capacity within 
New York based CDFIs and supporting their 
commitment to racial equity and ability to serve 
the bank challenged and otherwise underserved 
populations. Pursuant to the Governor’s 
commitment to fund the NYS CDFI Fund, up to 
$5,000,000 in grant support is available to 
certified CDFI that are dedicated to delivering 
responsible, affordable banking services to help 
low-income, low-wealth, and other disadvantaged 
people and communities join the economic 
mainstream. The CDFI Fund will also increase 
access to capital and technical assistance services 
for New York State small businesses, non-
employer firms and non-profit organizations. 
 
 

5 

I was just reviewing the latest CDFI Assistance Fund 
RFA that was released on NYS Contract Reporter. 
Entity Y applies for the ESD CDFI Assistance Fund 
award each year, and recently submitted an 
application for TA in January. We have some 
questions about this opportunity regarding the 
SOW. Is it possible to set up a brief call to discuss 
this RFA? 
 

All questions, comments, requests for clarification 
or any other communication regarding this 
Application for Assistance must be submitted by 
email to: <CDFI2021@esd.ny.gov>   no later than 
February 19, 2021.  ESD will post a response to all 
questions received on February 26, 2020.  

6 

Also, one housekeeping question - the RFA says 
"Up to $5,00,000 in grant support is available" - is 
this meant to say $5,000,000?  
 

Up to $5,000,000 in grant support is available to 
certified Community Development Financial 
Institutions (CDFI) that are dedicated to delivering 
responsible, affordable lending to help low-
income, low-wealth, and other disadvantaged 
people and communities join the economic 
mainstream. 

7 

 Is there a minimum or maximum request amount? 

 

The maximum award amount is $200,000 

https://www.nyscr.ny.gov/documents/CDFI%20Fund%20Request%20for%20Applications%202.4.21%20FINAL.pdf


 

 

No. Question Answer 

8 

Is there a page limit or font requirements for the 
narrative? 

No, however, the narrative should be brief and 
should effectively convey your organizations 
background, plan and goals. 

9 

I'm writing on behalf of entity Z to ask whether 
there is a word, character, or page limit for the 
narrative portion of the CDFI Assistance Fund 
application due March 12th. 

See response to question #8. 

10 

We have applied for ESD – CDFI Round 22 in 
January 2021, seeking support for our Technical 
Assistance program. We are still waiting to hear 
back about that round from your team. Can we 
apply again for this opportunity to support the 
expansion of our TA program? 

This new RFA focuses on building capacity within 
New York based CDFIs and supporting their 
commitment to racial equity and ability to serve 
the bank challenged and otherwise underserved 
populations. If you have applied for CDFI Round 22 
you are still eligible to able for this RFA. Please 
note, the scope of services for this RFA does not 
coincide with the CDFI Round 22 RFA.  

11 

With regard to purpose/use of funds, is there any 
preference given to applicants that focus on just 
one area (Technical Assistance, Institutional 
Capacity, or Banking services) vs. applicants that 
touch across 2 or 3 areas? 

There is no preference given to applicants who 
choose to focus on one area vs applicants who 
choose to focus their attention across more than 
one area. 

12 

Is there preference regarding deliverables and level 
of impact? For example, a program that may serve 
up to 20 households vs. a program that may serve 
up to 3. 

Deliverables and level of impact are often 
determined by the organization’s region and 
population.  

13 

In reference to the language on page 4, Section D 
and grant amounts in future years and the 
requirement to provide a 3 year plan – following 
the initial one year grant term, will there be a 
potential option to extend agreements for up to 2 
more years? 

The project period will generally be no longer than 
twelve (12) months.   



 

 

No. Question Answer 

14 

Can you confirm that grant funds can be applied 
toward Loan Loss Reserves? 

Grant funding will not apply towards Loan 
Loss Reserves. Funds may be used to 
provide  
 
Technical Assistance (“TA”) to bank 
challenged and otherwise underserved 
individuals who are experiencing barriers 
when accessing banking services;  
 
Increase the institutional capacity of the 
CDFI and strengthen its provision of 
products and services to bank challenged 
individuals; 
 
Provide broad banking services, ranging 
from savings accounts to capital for lending 
to individual, small business, nonemployer 
firms, or non-profit borrowers within the 
target populations and geographies that 
qualify the grant recipient to be a CDFI 
 
 

15 

If grants are used toward Loan Loss Reserves, do 
they need to be used toward defaulted loans 
within the 12 month project period? Or can they be 
added to a CDFI's Allowance for Loan Loss, for 
future use? (For example: the CDFI uses the grant 
to launch a new loan product, with loans that have 
5 year repayment terms. Can the grant-funded LLR 
be used to cover losses in that loan product a few 
years down the road, if the loan was originated 
during the project period?) 

See response to question #14. 

16 

The RFA addresses TA services to non-profits. Can 
grant funds also be used toward financial products 
for nonprofits? 

The CDFI Fund can be used to increase access to 
capital and technical assistance services for New 
York State small businesses, nonemployer firms 
and non-profit organizations. 



 

 

No. Question Answer 

17 

Can grant funds be used for cash incentives to 
clients? 

No. ESD grant funds can not be used for cash 
incentives to clients. 

18 

Does ESD intend to create a pipeline of referrals 
from its existing NY Forward Loan Fund borrowers 
to selected CDFIs to provide technical assistance, 
capacity building, and exposure to banking services 
as referenced in the RFA? 

No.  

19 

Please confirm that the application is due on 
March 12, 2021. 

Responses to the RFA listed above are due 
via email CDFI2021@esd.ny.gov on March 
12, 2021 
 by 3:00 PM. 

20 

Can I drop-off the application in-person? All applications should be submitted via 
email to CDFI2021@esd.ny.gov 

21 

What sort of proposals are eligible for the 
RFA? 

The Fund seeks to support CDFIs in 
connecting underserved populations with 
banking services and affordable credit. 
Eligible uses range from building CDFIs’ 
own institutional capacity to serve existing 
or new communities, to providing technical 
assistance and education, to lending or 
opening accounts.  The Fund invites CDFIs 
to explain how it would accomplish these 
goals if awarded a grant.  The explanation 
should include the applicant’s assessment of 
current needs and how the proposed use 
will address those needs, as well as the 
applicant’s ability to engage with the 
community it seeks to serve. 

mailto:CDFI2021@esd.ny.gov


 

 

No. Question Answer 

22 

Is the RFA open to both depository and non-
depository CDFIs? 

The RFA is open to both depository and 
non-depository CDFIs, and seeks to support 
institutions that can directly or indirectly 
provide comprehensive services to 
clients.  CDFIs that offer some services but 
not others—e.g., loans but not deposit 
accounts, or deposit accounts but not 
financial counseling—are encouraged to 
identity partner institutions to refer clients 
for those additional services not offered 
directly.  These partnerships do not need to 
be formalized by any contractual 
agreement, and the partners do not need to 
co-submit the RFA response, although 
responses should describe any such existing 
or planned partnership.  Potential 
applicants who seek assistance in 
identifying partner organizations may 
contact ESD to discuss. 

23 

The RFA requires a 25% matching 
commitment.  What counts as eligible 
matching funds? 

The RFA allows for both in-kind 
commitments and cash or cash equivalents 
to be used as a match, so long as the 
matching contributions are not derived 
from New York State funds.  Staff time 
allocation is an acceptable in-kind match. 

24 

Should the documentation of the required 
25% matching funds be provided with the 
application? 

A plan to coordinate and leverage use of 
assistance from Programs with existing 
non-state fund should be submitted with the 
application. 

25 

For the CDFI Fund, it would be helpful if you 
would specify the length of time that the 
Grant Disbursement Agreement will be in 
effect following the signing of the GDA. 

The Grant Disbursement Agreement will be 
in effect for one year following the signing 
of the GDA. 



 

 

No. Question Answer 

26 

Due to COVID-19, communities’ needs may 
shift over the grant lifetime.  Can program 
funds be reallocated to address emerging 
needs? 

The purpose of the Fund is to support New 
York CDFIs as they serve their communities, 
with a particular emphasis on meeting the 
needs of underserved populations.  Grant 
recipients that seek to adjust their proposed 
program should contact ESD.  Approved 
changes will only be made on a case by case 
basis. 

27 

What types of clients are eligible to be 
served using these grant funds? 

CDFIs may use grant funds to meet the 
needs of individuals for personal, family, 
and household needs, as well as for 
professional or entrepreneurial 
purposes.  CDFIs may also use grant funds 
to serve small businesses and non-profit 
organizations.  

    
 


